
330 Tres Pinos Road, Suite C7, Hollister, CA  95023 
Ph: (831) 637-7665     Fax: (831) 636-4160     www.SanBenitoCountyExpress.org 

AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING 

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

DATE:   Thursday, November 17, 2016 
   3:00 P.M.

LOCATION:  Board of Supervisors Chambers
   481 Fourth Street, Hollister, CA 95023 

DIRECTORS:  Chair Tony Boch, Vice Chair Ignacio Velazquez,  
Anthony Botelho, Victor Gomez, and Jerry Muenzer  
Alternates: San Benito County: Jaime De La Cruz;  
City of Hollister: Mickie Luna; San Juan Bautista: Jim West  

Persons who wish to address the Board of Directors must complete a Speaker Card and give it to the Clerk prior to 
addressing the Board. Those who wish to address the Board on an agenda item will be heard when the Chairperson 
calls for comments from the audience. Following recognition, persons desiring to speak are requested to advance to 
the podium and state their name and address. After hearing audience comments, the Public Comment portion of the 
agenda item will be closed. The opportunity to address the Board of Directors on items of interest not 
appearing on the agenda will be provided during Section B. Public Comment.

3:00 P.M. CALL TO ORDER: 

A. ACKNOWLEDGE Certificate of Posting 

B. PUBLIC COMMENT: (Opportunity to address the Board on items of interest not appearing on the 
agenda.  No action may be taken unless provided by Govt. Code Sec. 54954.2. Speakers are limited 
to 3 minutes.)

CONSENT AGENDA: 
(These matters shall be considered as a whole and without discussion unless a particular item is removed from the 
Consent Agenda. Members of the public who wish to speak on a Consent Agenda item must submit a Speaker Card 
to the Clerk and wait for recognition from the Chairperson. Approval of a consent item means approval as 
recommended on the Staff Report.) 

1. APPROVE Local Transportation Authority Draft Meeting Minutes Dated October 20, 2016 – 
Gomez

2. RECEIVE Specialized Transportation/Jovenes de Antaño September 2016 Monthly Service 
Report – Valentine 

3. RECEIVE County Express/MV Transportation September 2016 Monthly Operations Report 
– Valentine

4. ADOPT Resolution 16-04 Allocating Transportation Development Act Funds for Fiscal Year 
2015/2016 – Postigo 



330 Tres Pinos Road, Suite C7, Hollister, CA  95023 
Ph: (831) 637-7665     Fax: (831) 636-4160     www.SanBenitoCountyExpress.org 

REGULAR AGENDA: 

5. RECEIVE Report on the Performance of the County Express Shuttle Service to the San 
Benito County Fair – Valentine  

6. RECEIVE Presentation on County Express Commuter Rail Service to Gilroy – Valentine

Adjourn to LTA Meeting on Thursday, December 15, 2016.  Agenda deadline is November 29, 2016 at 12:00 p.m.  
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if requested, the Agenda can be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with a disability. If an individual wishes to request an alternative agenda format, please contact the Clerk of the Council four (4) days prior to 
the meeting at (831) 637-7665. The Local Transportation Authority Board of Directors meeting facility is accessible to persons with disabilities.  If you 
need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board's office at (831) 637-7665 at least 48 hours before the 
meeting to enable the Council of Governments to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility.  



1

Agenda Item :_______ 
San Benito County                                                                                         

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
REGULAR MEETING 

October 20, 2016    3:00 P.M. 

DRAFT MINUTES 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Chair Boch, Director Botelho, Director Velazquez, and Director De La Cruz  

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Director Gomez 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Deputy County Counsel, Shirley Murphy; Executive Director, Mary Gilbert; Transportation Planner, 
Veronica Lezama; Transportation Planner, Regina Valentine; Secretary, Monica Gomez 

CALL TO ORDER: 
Chair Boch called the meeting to order at 4:06 p.m. 

A. CERTIFICATE OF POSTING 
Upon a motion duly made by Director De La Cruz, and seconded by Director Velazquez, the Directors 
unanimously acknowledged the Certificate of Posting. Vote: 4/0 motion passes. 

B. PUBLIC COMMENT:  None 

CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Approve Local Transportation Authority Draft Meeting Minutes Dated September 15, 2016 – Gomez
2. Receive Specialized Transportation/Jovenes de Antaño August 2016 Monthly Service Report 
3. Receive County Express/MV Transportation August 2016 Monthly Operations Report – Valentine 
4. Adopt Resolution 16-03 Authorizing Executive Director to Apply for an Accept Public Transportation 

Modernization, Improvements, and Service Enhancement Account Funds Totaling $160,000 for a Project 
Titled, “Yard Capital Improvements” – Valentine 

There was no discussion or public comment on the Consent Agenda. 

Upon a motion duly made by Director Velazquez, and seconded by Director De La Cruz, the Directors 
unanimously approved Items 1-4 from the Consent Agenda, with an abstention on Item 1 from Director 
Botelho.  Vote: 4/0 motion passes.   

REGULAR AGENDA: 

5. APPROVE Contract Amendment #4 to the Contract Between LTA and Jovenes de Antaño (JDA) dated 
December 16, 2010 – Valentine 

Regina Valentine reported that the current contract between LTA and JDA was due to expire at the end of 
2016.  Staff proposed to exercise a contract optional year for 2017.  The contract amendment would allow 
JDA to continue to provide Specialized Transportation Services for LTA.  

The Board asked for clarification regarding the increase and breakdown of the cost.  They requested that in 
the future staff provides all of the back-up information in their packets for review. 



2

Pauline Valdivia with Jovenes de Antaño provided further information on the cost breakdown.  She noted 
that she could provide additional information/documentation in needed. 

There was no public comment. 

Director De La Cruz made a motion to approve Item 5 and Director Botelho seconded the motion under the 
stipulation that on future contracts, changes should not be made at the end of the contract. Vote: 4/0 motion 
passes. 

Upon a motion duly made by Director De La Cruz, and seconded by Director Botelho, the Directors 
unanimously adjourned the LTA meeting at 4:30 p.m. Vote:4/0 motion passes.

ADJOURN TO LTA MEETING NOVEMBER 17, 2016.  













Staff Report        

To:  Local Transportation Authority 
From:  Kathy Postigo, Administrative Services Specialist      Telephone: (831) 637-7665 
Date:  November 17, 2016 
Subject: Allocation of Transportation Development Act Funds for Fiscal Year 2014/2015 

Recommendation:

ADOPT Resolution 16-04 Allocating Transportation Development Act Funds for Fiscal Year 
2015/2016.

Summary:

Each year the COG Board is required by the Transportation Development Act to allocate Local 
Transportation Funds and State Transit Assistance Funds.   

Financial Considerations: 

For the Fiscal Year 2015/2016 the Local Transportation Authority is requesting $ 847,571.34 for 
Transit Operations under Article 4 and $220,960 for Community Transit Services under Article 
4.5.In total $872,396.34 is allocated from FY 15/16 revenue. This amount still leaves $700,000 
which was set aside for local streets and roads in the approved Budget. 

Background:

The Local Transportation Fund has been in existence since 1972 and is derived from a ¼ cent of the 
general sales tax collected statewide and returned to COG as Local Transportation Funds as defined 
under the Transportation Development Act.  The State Transit Assistance Fund has been in 
existence since 1980 and is derived from the statewide sales tax on gasoline and diesel fuel. The State 
Transit Assistance Funds are monies allocated to the COG by the State Controller’s Office based on 
the population of San Benito County and returned to COG to be used for public transit only. 

Local Transportation Funds are to be used for statutory purposes in San Benito County and include 
(in priority order): 

TDA administration costs 

General public transit operations and capital 

330 Tres Pinos Road, Suite C7, Hollister, CA  95023 
Ph: (831) 637-7665     Fax: (831) 636-4160     www.SanBenitoCountyExpress.org 



Contract payments for transit services 

Transit-related research and development projects 

Administration of transit contracts 

Elderly and disabled transit 

Bicycle and pedestrian projects 

Local streets and roads (Cities & County based on population) 

State Transportation Assistant Fund purposes in San Benito County include: 

Capital requirements of public transportation system 

Transit operations 

Contract payments for public transit services 

Administrative and planning cost of contracted public transportation 

Staff Analysis: 

Resolution 16-04 is required under the Transportation Development Act pursuant to Public Utilities 
Code Article 4 and Article 4.5 which are a part of the claims process.  Listed below are the 
requirements of the claimants for the Local Transportation Funds and the State Transit Assistance 
Funds:

1. The Local Transportation Authority is in conformity with the Regional Transportation 
Plan.

2. The level of passenger fares and charges are sufficient to enable the Local 
Transportation Authority to meet the fare box revenue requirements of the Public 
Utilities Code. 

3. The sum of the County of San Benito allocations from the State Transit Assistance Fund 
and from the Local Transportation Fund does not exceed the amount the claimant is 
eligible to receive during the fiscal year. 

4. The Local Transportation Authority has submitted the certification required by the 
Department of California Highway Patrol verifying that the operator is in compliance 
with Section 1801.1 of the Vehicle Code. 

Staff recommends that the Board APPROVE Resolution 16-04. 

Executive Director Review:      Counsel Review:  __Yes___ 

Attachment: Resolution 16-04 

330 Tres Pinos Road, Suite C7, Hollister, CA  95023 
Ph: (831) 637-7665     Fax: (831) 636-4160     www.SanBenitoCountyExpress.org 







Agenda Item:   

330 Tres Pinos Road, Suite C7, Hollister, CA  95023 
Ph: (831) 637-7665     Fax: (831) 636-4160     www.SanBenitoCountyExpress.org 

Staff Report 
To: Local Transportation Authority  
From:  Regina Valentine, Transportation Planner Telephone: (831) 637-7665 x 205 
Date:  November 17, 2016 
Subject: San Benito County Fair Shuttle Performance  

Recommendation:

RECEIVE Report on the Performance of the County Express Shuttle Service to the San Benito 
County Fair.

Summary:

The Local Transportation Authority has provided an annual shuttle service to the County Fair since 
2013.  The shuttle service to the 2016 County Fair, held September 29 through October 2, had a 
total of 66 passengers.   

Financial Considerations: 

The cost of providing the 2016 shuttle service was approximately $1,400.

Background:

With the Board’s authorization in August 2016, County Express offered shuttle service to the 
2016 San Benito County Fair from September 29 through October 2.  Staff worked with the San 
Benito County Fair Staff to promote the service, and select an appropriate schedule and stop 
locations. 

Staff Analysis: 

The Local Transportation Authority has provided a shuttle service to the County Fair in 2013, 
2014, 2015 and 2016. The additional shuttle service has allowed the Local Transportation 
Authority to market its services to residents who are not familiar with County Express to try transit. 
In addition to the marketing potential, the shuttle service has had a positive impact on the County 
Fair.  The shuttle service has brought attendees who may not have access to personal vehicles and 
has helped reduce demand on the often crowded parking lot at the fairgrounds.  

As directed by the Board at the August 2016 meeting, staff has reviewed the historic ridership 
data for the County Fair shuttle service in 2013, 2014, 2015, and 2016. With this information, 
staff can analyze the performance of the service and receive direction from the Board regarding 
the possibility of continuing it in the upcoming year. 



County Fair Shuttle Service Performance San Benito County Local Transportation Authority  
November 17, 2016 
Page 2 

330 Tres Pinos Road, Suite C7, Hollister, CA  95023 
Ph: (831) 637-7665     Fax: (831) 636-4160     www.SanBenitoCountyExpress.org 

In the table below, the ridership numbers of the County Fair shuttle service is provided by year. It 
should be noted that each year staff has made adjustments to the service in attempts to better 
serve the community or at the request of the County Fair, which impacts ridership. For example, in 
2014 shuttle stops were added in San Juan Bautista, which may have contributed to a lower 
number due to the increased length of the trip. Additionally, variations in the overall attendance 
of the County Fair year-to-year could affect shuttle performance.     

Year Ridership 

2013 231 

2014 71 

2015 26 

2016 66 

As in years past, a brief County Fair shuttle service survey was provided to the passengers. This 
year out of the 66 riders 13 completed the survey providing valuable feedback. One question 
asked participants how they would have attended the County Fair if the shuttle was not provided. 
Twenty-three percent (23%) marked that they would have driven themselves, 31% would have 
asked a friend or family member for a ride, and 46% would not have gone at all. Also, all 13 
respondents indicated they would ride again next year if the service was provided.        

Executive Director Review:      Counsel Review:  __N/A__



Agenda Item:   

330 Tres Pinos Road, Suite C7, Hollister, CA  95023 
Ph: (831) 637-7665     Fax: (831) 636-4160     www.SanBenitoCountyExpress.org 

Staff Report 
To: Local Transportation Authority  
From:  Regina Valentine, Transportation Planner Telephone: (831) 637-7665 x 205 
Date:  November 17, 2016 
Subject: County Express Commuter Rail Service to Gilroy  

Recommendation:

RECEIVE Presentation on County Express Commuter Rail Service to Gilroy  

Summary:

In response to a request from the Board, staff has conducted preliminary research on the 
possibility of creating a commuter rail service from San Benito County to the Gilroy CalTrain 
station.

Financial Considerations: 

The financial impact at this time is unknown.    

Background:

Census information indicates that 48.9% of employed San Benito County residents commute 
outside of the county for employment.  As the population of the county continues to increase at a 
rate higher than the employment opportunities, current congestion issues for personal automobiles 
will continue to increase, including along Highway 25.  During the August meeting, the LTA Board 
requested that staff conduct preliminary research on the possibility of creating a County Express 
commuter rail service to Gilroy to relieve congestion. Staff provided a related report to the 
Board in October 2015 regarding possible County Express commuter services to the Silicon 
Valley.

Staff Analysis: 

Existing Conditions 

Currently, 48.9% of the employed population of San Benito County commutes outside of the 
county for employment, with much of these commuters traveling to points north. County Express 
currently operates 10 Intercounty transit routes during the A.M. commute period, with four offering 
direct service to the Gilroy Transit Center.  Annually, the Intercounty service transports 42,097 
passengers (FY15/16) with 13,042 accessing the Gilroy Transit Center. 



County Express Commuter Rail to Gilroy San Benito County Local Transportation Authority  
November 17, 2016 
Page 2 

330 Tres Pinos Road, Suite C7, Hollister, CA  95023 
Ph: (831) 637-7665     Fax: (831) 636-4160     www.SanBenitoCountyExpress.org 

The Gilroy Transit Center is the southernmost transit center in Santa Clara County.  This transit 
center provides a location for operations of four different transit agencies: San Benito County 
Express, Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority (VTA), Monterey Salinas Transit (MST), and 
CalTrain.   

VTA currently operates seven different bus routes that service the Gilroy Transit Center.  Three of 
these bus routes have service into Silicon Valley: #68 with service to Diridon Station, #168 
(Express) with service to Diridon Station, #121 (Express) with service to Lockheed Martin Transit 
Center.  All of these northbound services provide southbound services in the P.M. commute period.   

Monterey Salinas Transit (MST) currently operates two bus lines that stop at the Gilroy Transit 
Center, with service into Silicon Valley.  The San Jose Express (#55) operates from Monterey to 
Diridon Station getting a passenger to Diridon by 12 noon.  The King City – San Jose Route (#86) 
can get a passenger to Diridon Station by 8:03 am via the San Jose International Airport (SJC). 

CalTrain currently operates three northbound trains during the A.M. commute period from Gilroy.  
However, there are no southbound trains that make it all the way to Gilroy during the morning.  
Also, there is some uncertainty as to what will happen to CalTrain services, south of San Jose, once 
the Peninsula Corridor Electrification Project is complete.   

Preliminary Research 

In June 2000, the San Benito Council of Governments (San Benito COG) had a report prepared 
to look at the feasibility of extending the CalTrain line from Gilroy to Hollister (4th and Sally).  
The annual operating costs associated with this extension (in FY2000 Dollars) would have been 
$638,000 and $941,000, for two and three train scenarios respectively.  The initial capital 
investment for this project (in FY2000 Dollars) would have been between $19.6 and $27.1 million 
dollars, depending on the level of safety and the desired speed of the trains. Although this report 
still provides valuable information, a significant amount of time has passed since its preparation 
and some project assumptions must be reconsidered.  

CalTrain’s Participation

In projecting costs, the 2000 report relied heavily upon the assumption that CalTrain would be the 
operating partner of the commuter rail service. Cost savings were anticipated with the use of 
existing Caltrain crews, cars, and locomotives operating to and from Gilroy, requiring no 
additional equipment. It was found in the report that it would not be practical for new commuter 
rail service to Gilroy to be operated by any provider other than CalTrain. Since the preparation 
of the report, CalTrain has indicated no interest in extending their operation of commuter rail into 
San Benito and Monterey counties. In fact, CalTrain has since reduced their Gilroy service from 
four northbound trains during the A.M. commute period to three in 2005.       

Ridership Projections

In the 2000 report, it was projected that in 2003 weekday daily ridership would range between 
218 and 250 passengers, and in 2020 would range between 350 and 402 passengers. Due to 
the nature of commuter rail, riders would be expected to travel north in the A.M. to attend work 
and south in the P.M. to return home. Since each person would typically ride twice a day, to 
determine the total number of commuters served the projected ridership should be divided in half. 



County Express Commuter Rail to Gilroy San Benito County Local Transportation Authority  
November 17, 2016 
Page 3 

330 Tres Pinos Road, Suite C7, Hollister, CA  95023 
Ph: (831) 637-7665     Fax: (831) 636-4160     www.SanBenitoCountyExpress.org 

For that reason, the projected number of weekday commuters served in 2003 ranges between 
109 and 125, and in 2020 between 175 and 201, according to the 2000 report.

As quite some time has passed since the report was prepared, staff reviewed the average 
weekday passenger boardings for the Gilroy CalTrain service for a comparison. In March 2016, 
CalTrain experienced an average of 179 passengers boarding in Gilroy during weekdays. It 
should be noted that CalTrain’s ridership is boosted by connecting transit services from VTA and 
MST, as well as, County Express’ 26 average weekday round-trip riders to the Gilroy Transit 
Center.

Hollister Branch Line Ownership 

During the preparation of the 2000 report, Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) was in ownership of the 
track that runs between Hollister and Gilroy, also known as the Hollister Branch Line. In 2013, 
UPRR sold the line to a private firm, San Benito Railroad LLC, so LTA must anticipate negotiating 
use of the track if a commuter rail is considered. Additionally as part of the purchase, UPRR 
retained an exclusive easement to provide freight rail service on the line where freight has service 
priority over commuter rail, which would impact service planning.     

Funding Considerations 

As reported above, in the 2000 report with CalTrain’s project management the annual operating 
costs (in FY2000 Dollars) was projected to be between $638,000 and $941,000, with an initial 
capital investment between $19.6 and $27.1 million dollars. Although CalTrain is no longer 
interested in pursuing the project, staff reviewed potential funding sources.  

Operations

The major source of funding used by LTA to operate transportation services is the Transportation 
Development Act (TDA). During the FY 2013 – 2015 period, on average San Benito COG was 
allocated $1,349,753 in TDA funds. As per state legislature, TDA funds are used to financially 
support the following in order of priority:

TDA fund administration 
Regional transportation planning 
Bicycle and pedestrian facilities 
Public transit 
Streets and roads 

When passenger rail services are provided in a region, per state legislature the operating costs 
for the service must take priority above public transit services. For this reason, County Express 
would be competing for limited TDA funds to continue to provide Fixed Route, Paratransit, 
General Public Dial-a-Ride, and Specialized Transportation services for seniors and persons with 
disabilities. Some potential ways to reduce the amount of TDA funds needed to operate commuter 
rail may include a local transportation sales tax measure or private sector contributions.   



County Express Commuter Rail to Gilroy San Benito County Local Transportation Authority  
November 17, 2016 
Page 4 

330 Tres Pinos Road, Suite C7, Hollister, CA  95023 
Ph: (831) 637-7665     Fax: (831) 636-4160     www.SanBenitoCountyExpress.org 

Capital

Potential funding for the required capital purchases for the commuter rail service to Gilroy could 
include federal, state, and local sources. As authorized by the five-year federal transportation 
funding bill, Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act (FAST Act), the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) offers a competitive Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grant to fund 
investments such as new and expanded rapid rail, commuter rail, light rail, streetcars, bus rapid 
transit, and ferries. Further research would need to be conducted to determine which category the 
project could be eligible under: New Starts for projects with a total estimated capital cost of 
$300 million+ or that are seeking $100 million+ in funds, or Small Starts with a total estimated 
capital cost of less than $300 million and that are seeking less than $100 million in funds. 
Additionally, before applications could be submitted LTA must ensure that the project has cleared 
FTA grant requirements such as design and environmental review.  

At the state level, the California State Transportation Agency (CalSTA) offers a competitive 
Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP) grant to fund transformative capital 
improvements that modernize California’s intercity, commuter, and urban rail systems to reduce 
emissions of greenhouse gases by reducing congestion and vehicle miles traveled. With funds 
generated from the state’s Cap and Trade auction proceeds, in August 2016 CalSTA awarded 
$390 million statewide to fund 14 projects with award amounts ranging between $5 million to 
$82 million. As described for the FTA funding source, before applications could be submitted LTA 
must ensure that the project has cleared CalSTA grant requirements such as design and 
environmental review.  

To funds capital purchases locally, as with the funding for operations, they could be provided with 
a local transportation sales tax measure or from private sector contributions.  

Next Steps 

The County Express commuter rail service to Gilroy project has been included in the adopted 
2035 San Benito Regional Transportation Plan as an unconstrained project as funding has not 
been identified. Staff will bring this item to the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), which 
includes City of Hollister and San Benito County staff, for project input and to establish a work 
plan. Next steps could include applying for a Caltrans Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant 
to prepare an updated project study.   

Executive Director Review:      Counsel Review:  __N/A__

Attachment: Hollister/Gilroy CalTrain Extension Final Report Executive Summary 






















